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1 Reason for Contribution

To provide additional information to the PoC, Presence and XDM RFI. The contribution should serve as an input to OMA RFI responsible(s).

2 Summary of Contribution

The contribution includes additional information, clarification and modification to the existing PoC RFI document.
This version includes comments from first review by IOP-POC SWG.
Version sent out by Howard is included as well.

3 Detailed Proposal

Howard’s version of the document.
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Q1: Will the Test Tool be able to provide the functionality of the Presence and XDM Enablers?

Although the RFI refers to PoC Enabler, it is implicit that the Test Tool shall provide Presence and XDM Enabler functionality.

Q2: Are you planning to include the software version and statement of compliance with each of your software deliveries to OMA?

Software Version and Statement of Compliance

The Test Tool documentation shall specify which version(s) with release date(s) of OMA specification package(s) it supports. A statement of compliance against the latest supported specification version shall be provided to indicate the conformance to all the mandatory and optional features.

Q3: Are you planning to include the delta of software functionality with each software delivery to OMA? (see below addition to RFI, section 5.6)

A delta of implemented functionality between the old and upgraded versions of the Test Tool shall be provided. The documentation shall specify all newly added, modified and removed functionality.

Q4: Are you planning to comply with providing the following Test Tool modules? (see below clarification to RFI, section 6.1)

· PoC client

· PoC Server (Participating and Controlling functionality, if required)

· XDM Client (residing in User Equipment and in the Application Server)

· Aggregation Proxy/Shared XDMS

· Aggregation Proxy/PoC XDMS

· Presence Client

· Presence Server

· Aggregation Proxy/Presence XDMS/RLS XDMS
· OTA
Q5: Are you planning to provide the Test Tool that is Operating System independent? What Operating System will be chosen? (see below clarification to RFI, section 6.3)
The Test Tool should be Operating System independent. If not feasible, the Operating System should be chosen based on the following recommendations:

1. wide availability,

2. preferably open source,

3. common industry choice,

4. reasonably priced (purchase and maintenance)

No specific Operating System is recommended.

Q6: Will the Test Tool be able to provide the following Server Emulator functionality?  (see below clarification to RFI, section 6.6)
1. Emulate the SIP/IP Core so that the client can perform SIP authentication and registration.

a. The user shall be able to turn off the SIP/IP Core emulation

b. The SIP/IP Core should emulate the 3GPP and 3GPP2 IMS specifications

2. Emulate an Aggregation Proxy to give the client the ability to access XDMS additional to: allow the client to perform authentication

3. All contact lists are URI Lists

4. Emulate a PoC XDMS to support, at the very least, the following functionality

d. Making calls using available lists and groups (pre-arranged, chat and ad-hoc)

5. Emulate a Presence Server with the following functionality:

b. Load the corresponding Presence reference documents produced by OMA-IOP-PoC

c. Compare the response from the client to the Presence reference documents for semantic verification

Q7: Will the Test Tool be able to provide the following Client Emulator functionality?  (see below clarification to RFI, section 6.7)

1. Allow the user to register with the SIP/IP Core.

4.  Allow the user to create lists in the Shared XDMS.
5. Allow the user to create prearranged groups, chat groups and enabler specific lists in the enabler specific XDMS.

6. Support the following Presence functionality

d. Load the corresponding Presence reference documents produced by OMA-IOP-PoC 

e. Compare the published presence document from the server to the Presence reference documents for semantic verification

Q8: Will the Test Tool be able to provide the following functionality? (see below clarification to RFI, section 6.8)
1. The Test Tool must be capable of operating without a client or server emulator enabled.

a. In this mode, the Test Tool shall be able to analyze the captured protocol against the specifications

4 Intellectual Property Rights

Members and their Affiliates (collectively, "Members") agree to use their reasonable endeavours to inform timely the Open Mobile Alliance of Essential IPR as they become aware that the Essential IPR is related to the prepared or published Specification.  This obligation does not imply an obligation on Members to conduct IPR searches.  This duty is contained in the Open Mobile Alliance application form to which each Member's attention is drawn.  Members shall submit to the General Manager of Operations of OMA the IPR Statement and the IPR Licensing Declaration.  These forms are available from OMA or online at the OMA website at www.openmobilealliance.org.

5 Recommendation

To provide the document to Howard Greenwell.
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Use of this document is subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Use Agreement located at
http://www.openmobilealliance.org/UseAgreement.html.

Unless this document is clearly designated as an approved specification, this document is a work in process, is not an
approved Open Mobile Alliance™ specification, and is subject to revision or removal without notice.

You may use this document or any part of the document for internal or educational purposes only, provided you do not
modify, edit or take out of context the information in this document in any manner. Information contained in this document
may be used, at your sole risk, for any purposes. You may not use this document in any other manner without the prior
written permission of the Open Mobile Alliance. The Open Mobile Alliance authorizes you to copy this document, provided
that you retain all copyright and other proprietary notices contained in the original materials on any copies of the materials
and that you comply strictly with these terms. This copyright permission does not constitute an endorsement of the products
or services. The Open Mobile Alliance assumes no responsibility for errors or omissions in this document.

Each Open Mobile Alliance member has agreed to use reasonable endeavors to inform the Open Mobile Alliance in a timely
manner of Essential IPR as it becomes aware that the Essential IPR is related to the prepared or published specification.
However, the members do not have an obligation to conduct IPR searches. The declared Essential IPR is publicly available
to members and non-members of the Open Mobile Alliance and may be found on the “OMA IPR Declarations” list at
http://www.openmobilealliance.org/ipr.html. The Open Mobile Alliance has not conducted an independent IPR review of
this document and the information contained herein, and makes no representations or warranties regarding third party IPR,
including without limitation patents, copyrights or trade secret rights. This document may contain inventions for which you
must obtain licenses from third parties before making, using or selling the inventions. Defined terms above are set forth in
the schedule to the Open Mobile Alliance Application Form.

NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES (WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) ARE MADE BY THE OPEN
MOBILE ALLIANCE OR ANY OPEN MOBILE ALLIANCE MEMBER OR ITS AFFILIATES REGARDING ANY OF
THE IPR’S REPRESENTED ON THE “OMA IPR DECLARATIONS” LIST, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE
ACCURACY, COMPLETENESS, VALIDITY OR RELEVANCE OF THE INFORMATION OR WHETHER OR NOT
SUCH RIGHTS ARE ESSENTIAL OR NON-ESSENTIAL.

THE OPEN MOBILE ALLIANCE IS NOT LIABLE FOR AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT,
PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF DOCUMENTS AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENTS.

© 2004 Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. All Rights Reserved. Used with the permission of the Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. under
the terms set forth above.
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1. General Questions and Answers

This document contains the cumulative answers to all questions asked about the OMA Request for Information relating to the
PoC Enablers.

All identifying information in the questions and answers has been removed.

Any questions asked after the 2" September will not be included in this Version 1 document. Such questions may still be
addressed by the members of OMA, and if answers are agreed, then these will be forwarded to all companies who have
expressed an intent to respond to the RFI.

Final submissions to OMA are due on Friday 16" September at 5pm GMT.

1.1 Question 1 — Presence and XDM Support

Question: Although the RFI mentions both XDM and Presence, it is not clear as to whether testing of these two
enablers should also be part of the RFL.

Answer: Although the RFI refers to PoC Enabler, it is implicit that the Test Tool shall provide Presence and XDM
Enabler functionality as well.

The list of priorities in Section 6.1 of the RFI, the Priority list of testing, should now be read as:

PoC client

PoC Server (Participating and Controlling functionality, if required)
XDM Client (residing in User Equipment and in the Application Server)
Aggregation Proxy/Shared XDMS

Aggregation Proxy/PoC XDMS

e Presence Client

® Presence Server
e Aggregation Proxy/Presence XDMS/RLS XDMS

e OTA

1.2 Question 2 — Operating Environments

Question: Our submission will not run on Linux, what specific requirements do OMA have with regard to the
environment the tool will operate in?

Answer: The Test Tool should be Operating System independent. If not feasible, the Operating System should be
chosen based on the following recommendations:

1. Wide availability,

2. Preferably open source,
3.  Common industry choice,
4

Reasonably priced (purchase and maintenance)

No specific Operating System is recommended.

© 2005 Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. All Rights Reserved.
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1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Question 3 — Protocol Capture Tool

Question: Please can you clarify point 1 of the protocol capture tool requirements. Does this mean the tool can run
with no client emulator AND no server emulator running?

Answer: Yes, in this mode, the Test Tool shall be able to analyze the captured protocol against the specifications

Question 4 - IPR

Question: What is the intention of OMA concerning the IPRs? Is it the aim of OMA to get the IPRs of the
Testtool or will they remain at the Testtool vendor?

Answer: It is not the intention of OMA to get the IPR of the TestTool. It is expected that the IPR and Copyright of
the Test Tool will remain with the vendor, or in the case of an Open Source tool, with the Community in general.

Question 5 — Multiple Vendors

Question: Shall the tool fulfil all requirements proposed in the RFI? Or is OMA probably considering as well to
licence two products from different vendors? For example one for server and one for client testing?

Answer: The expectation of OMA is to work with one vendor, but there is nothing in the process that would
prevent OMA working with more than one vendor should the best tools come from two different vendors.

Question 6 — Availability

Question: Is there an expected date by OMA when the Testtool shall be ready?

Answer: No, but the timescale for a respondent to deliver will be considered as part of the evaluation criteria.
OMAA is looking for early availability of the selected tool.

Question 7 — Advertising

Question: Will it be allowed to advertise for the testtool that it is licenced by OMA?
Answer: OMA processes do not prevent this being part of any agreement reached with a supplier of a Test Tool to

the OMA members. An acceptable level and content of advertising would be agreed between OMA and a
preferred supplier during any license negotiation.

Question 8 — Terminology

Question: Is a "should" requirement characterising an optional feature? And "shall" a mandatory one?

Answer: All use of SHOULD and SHALL in OMA documents is based on the IETF Document, “Key words for
use in RFCs to Indicate Requirement Levels”. S. Bradner. March 1997. URL:http://www.ietf.org/rfc/rfc2119.txt.

© 2005 Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. All Rights Reserved.
Used with the permission of the Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. under the terms as stated in this document.
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2. RFI Clarifications

The discussions in OMA relating to the above questions have yielded the following clarifications of the expected meaning
and/or deliverables related to submissions.

2.1

Sections 5.5/5.6 - Upgrade Path

OMA members would like to see each new release of the tool provide the following additional documentation
accompany the delivery to support the verification and acceptance of the tool. Respondents are asked to indicate in their
submissions that these items are possible.

2.2

Software Version and Statement of Compliance

The Test Tool documentation shall specify which version(s) with release date(s) of OMA specification package(s) it
supports. A statement of compliance against the latest supported specification version shall be provided to indicate
the conformance to all the mandatory and optional features.

Change List

A delta of implemented functionality between the old and upgraded versions of the Test Tool shall be provided. The
documentation shall specify all newly added, modified and removed functionality.

Section 6.6 — Server Emulator Functionality

OMA have added the following further clarifications of the requirements for the server emulator as follows:

2.3

Emulate the SIP/IP Core so that the client can perform SIP authentication and registration.
a. The user shall be able to turn off the SIP/IP Core emulation
b. The SIP/IP Core should emulate the 3GPP and 3GPP2 IMS specifications

Emulate an Aggregation Proxy to give the client the ability to access XDMS additional to: allow the client to
perform authentication

All contact lists are URI Lists

Emulate a PoC XDMS to support, at the very least, the following functionality

d. Making calls using available lists and groups (pre-arranged, chat and ad-hoc)
Emulate a Presence Server with the following functionality:

b. Load the corresponding Presence reference documents produced by OMA-IOP-PoC

c. Compare the response from the client to the Presence reference documents for semantic verification

Section 6.7 — Client Emulator Functionality

OMA have added the following further clarifications of the requirements for the client emulator as follows:

© 2005 Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. All Rights Reserved.
Used with the permission of the Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. under the terms as stated in this document.
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1. Allow the user to register with the SIP/IP Core.

4. Allow the user to create prearranged groups, chat groups and enabler specific lists in the enabler specific
XDMS.

5. Allow the user to create prearranged groups, chat groups and enabler specific lists in the enabler specific
XDMS.

6. Support the following Presence functionality
d. Load the corresponding Presence reference documents produced by OMA-IOP-PoC

e. Compare the published presence document from the server to the Presence reference documents for
semantic verification

© 2005 Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. All Rights Reserved.
Used with the permission of the Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. under the terms as stated in this document.






